Bay Area Air Quality Management District 939 ELLIS STREET SAN FRANCISCO, CALIFORNIA 94109 (415) 749-5000

APPROVED MINUTES

Summary of Board of Directors Executive Committee Meeting 9:30 a.m., Friday, February 9, 2007

- 1. Call to Order Roll Call: Chair Mark Ross called the meeting to order at 9:35 a.m.
 - **Present:** Mark Ross, Chair, Chris Daly, Jerry Hill, Patrick Kwok, Pamela Torliatt (9:40 a.m.), Gayle B. Uilkema.
 - Absent: Scott Haggerty, Tim Smith, Brad Wagenknecht.
- 2. **Public Comment Period**: There were no public comments.
- **3. Approval of Minutes of December 21, 2006**: Director Kwok moved approval of the minutes; seconded by Director Hill; carried unanimously without objection.
- 4. Quarterly Report of the Hearing Board October 2006-December 2006: Hearing Board member Terry Trumbull presented the <u>Hearing Board Quarterly Report October 2006 December 2006.</u>

Committee Action: None. This report provided for information only.

5. Report of the Advisory Council: November 2006 – January 2007

Fred Glueck, Advisory Council Chairperson, presented the report and summarized the key issues discussed at meetings of the Advisory Council and its Standing Committees. Mr. Glueck stated that the Council held its annual Retreat in January 2007 and the Executive Officer/APCO identified five issues that the Council could pursue. The five issues are the Community Air Risk Evaluation (CARE) Program, particulate matter and wood smoke, the Spare the Air Tonight campaign, indoor air quality, and climate protection.

Director Pamela Torliatt arrived at 9:40 a.m.

Mr. Glueck noted that Board Chair Mark Ross attended the Council's Retreat and that he spoke about the issues that will be before the Advisory Council this year. In response to a question from Director Uilkema regarding the Council interacting with community groups, Mr. Glueck stated that the Outreach and Incentives Division has made presentations to the Council, but that the Council has not yet determined how to engage these groups. Director Uilkema suggested that the Council discuss this issue at their next meeting. Committee Action: None. This report provided for information only.

6. Spare the Air Program Update: *Staff provided the Committee with a status report on the Spare the Air Program.*

Jean Roggenkamp, Deputy APCO, presented the report and stated that the Spare the Air Program was started 16 years ago. Ms. Roggenkamp stated that one key element of the Spare the Air Program is free transit and the District would like to continue this program in 2007. The 2006 Spare the Air Free-Transit Program was reviewed, including areas of concern. Ms. Roggenkamp presented the Spare the Air 2007 proposal to the Committee.

The Committee discussed the following:

- The 2007 proposal with an emphasis on the free-transit aspect.
- Staff has been working with the transit agencies regarding security concerns.
- How to continue funding for all day free transit economically sustainable.
- Understandable by the public.
- Approaching stationary sources to reduce emissions on Spare the Air days.
- Congestion pricing.
- BART, CalTrain and the ferry systems have indicated they would like to go to partial free transit days; the bus agencies would like to have all day free fares.
- Send a clear message to get out of cars.

Jack Broadbent, Executive Officer/APCO, stated that staff will report back to the Committee on the cost-effectiveness of the program.

Committee Action: None. This report provided for information only.

7. Discussion and Overview of Board of Directors' Meeting/Retreat of January 17, 2007: Staff reviewed for the Committee follow-up items from the Board of Directors with regard to policy issues discussed at the January 17, 2007 meeting/retreat.

Mr. Broadbent presented the item and reviewed key items from the Board Retreat, which included the state of the Air District, programs to reduce toxic air contaminants, a wood smoke strategy, and climate protection efforts.

Mr. Broadbent noted that one program the Air District is embarking on to reduce toxic air contaminants is development of a regulatory effort with the ports in the Bay Area, with major focus on the Port of Oakland. A Board Ad Hoc Committee to address this issue has been established.

The issue of wood smoke was discussed and Mr. Broadbent noted that there have been a lot of hazy days this winter. There was discussion on a regulatory program, outreach, incentives, and a curtailment program that would be phased in over several years. Puget Sound and the San Joaquin Valley Unified Air District have already established processes for reduction of wood smoke.

An overview of the climate protection efforts was presented to the Committee, with a review of the current initiatives. Direction for climate protection includes the establishment of a Bay Area Climate Protection Council, a public outreach campaign focusing on an educational component,

development of a website, and establishment of criteria and an implementation process for the Climate Protection Grant Program.

Committee Action: None. The Committee received and filed the report.

8. Air District Financial Overview for Fiscal Year 2007/2008: Staff provided a financial overview for the FY 07/08 budget process.

Jeff McKay, Chief Financial Officer, stated that the District is in good shape and that a presentation on the budget process was given to the Budget and Finance Committee. Mr. McKay highlighted the unfunded medical liability and noted that the actuarial study has been completed. A detailed presentation is scheduled for the February 28th Budget and Finance Committee meeting.

Committee Action: None. The Committee received and filed the report.

- **9. Committee Member Comments/Other Business:** Chairperson Ross stated he would speak to the Committee Chairs about cancelling meetings on Spare the Air days unless there is a time critical item on the agenda. Chair Ross requested this item be on the next Executive Committee meeting agenda.
- **10. Time and Place of Next Meeting:** At the Call of the Chair.
- **11. Adjournment.** The meeting was adjourned at 11:22 a.m.

/s/ Mary Romaidis Mary Romaidis Clerk of the Boards